
Case 1:13-cv-21570-WJZ   Document 5   Entered on FLSD Docket 05/01/2013   Page 1 of 4

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

Case No.: 13-21570-Civ-Zloch 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY; 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, 
MIAMI-DADE COUNTY; 
PUBLIC HEALTH TRUST, 
MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 

Defendants. 

------------------------------~/ 

JOINT MOTION TO ENTER CONSENT AGREEMENT 

The Plaintiff, United States of America, and Defendants, Miami-Dade County; the Board 

of County Commissioners ofMiami-Dade County; and the Public Health Trust ofMiami-Dade 

County (collectively, "the Parties") jointly move this honorable Court to enter the attached 

Consent Agreement as an order of the Court to resolve the above-styled case. 

1. On April 2, 2008, the Plaintiff notified Defendants of its intention to investigate 

conditions of confinement at the Miami-Dade County Corrections and Rehabilitation Department 

("MDCR") Jail facilities, pursuant to the Civil Rights oflnstitutionalized Persons Act, 42 U.S.C. 

§ 1997 ("CRIP A"). 

2. On August 24, 2011, the Plaintiff issued a findings letter pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 

§ 1997 that concluded that certain conditions at the MDCR Jail facilities violated the 

constitutional rights of individuals confined at the facilities. 
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3. On July 9, 2012, the Plaintiff presented the County with a settlement proposal. 

Over the subsequent months, the Parties continued to negotiate an agreement to resolve the 

concerns described in the Plaintiff's findings letter. 

4. The Parties have engaged in extensive settlement negotiations and, to avoid the 

burdens of contested litigation, have agreed to bifurcate the settlement into two agreements: (1) 

a private agreement to addresses certain remedial measures; and (2) the Consent Agreement 

before this Court. The comprehensive Consent Agreement is designed to remedy the 

constitutional deficiencies alleged by the Plaintiff in the Complaint as to medical care, mental 

health care, and suicide prevention for all MDCR Jail facilities' inmates. 

5. As discussed in more detail in the attached Memorandum in Support of this Joint 

Motion to Enter Consent Agreement, this Court should approve the Consent Agreement because 

the settlement is "fair, adequate and reasonable as between the parties." In re Smith, 926 F.2d 

1027, 1028-29 (11th Cir. 1991); United States v. City of Miami, 664 F.2d 435,441 (5th Cir. 

1981. In addition, this Court should approve this Consent Agreement because it complies with 

the Prison Litigation Reform Act in that relief is "narrowly drawn, extends no further than 

necessary to correct the violation of the Federal right, and is the least intrusive means necessary 

to correct the violation of the Federal right." 18 U.S.C. § 3626. 

6. The Consent Agreement, if entered by this Court, will resolve all claims raised in 

the Complaint. 

WHEREFORE, the Parties therefore jointly request that this Court enter an order 

approving the Consent Agreement in its entirety as to the Complaint and entering it as an order 

of the Court. 

2 
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Respectfully submitted this~ day of ...fllo-

FOR THE UNITED STATES: 

nica Harrell~J e 
sistant U.S. Attorney 

Southern District of Florida 

3 

'2013. 
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FOR THE DEFENDANTS 
MIAMI~ DADE COUNTY: 

GDwte 
BERNARDO PASTOR 
Assistant County Attorney 
Stephen P. Clark Center, Suite 2810 
111 N.W. 1st Street 
Miami, Florida 33128~1993 
Tel: (J05) 375~-l-506 --- - · ·-- - - · -- - -
Fax: (305) 375-5611 

4 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

Case No.: 13-21570-Civ-Zloch 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY; 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, 
MIAMI-DADE COUNTY; 
PUBLIC HEALTH TRUST, 
MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 

Defendants. 

------------------------------~/ 

MEMORANDUM OF LAW IN SUPPORT OF JOINT 
MOTION TO 

ENTER CONSENT AGREEMENT 

The Plaintiff, United States of America, through the Civil Rights Division of the 

Department of Justice and the United States Attorney's Office, Southern District of Florida 

("United States") and Defendants, Miami-Dade County; the Board of County Commissioners of 

Miami-Dade County; and the Public Health Trust ofMiami-Dade County (collectively, "the 

Parties") jointly move this honorable Court to enter the attached Consent Agreement as an order 

of the Court to resolve the above-styled case. 

On April2, 2008, the United States notified Miami-Dade County officials of its intention 

to investigate conditions of confinement at the correctional facilities ('"the Jail facilities") 

operated by the Miami-Dade County Corrections and Rehabilitation Department ("MDCR"), 

pursuant to the Civil Rights of Institutionalized Persons Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1997 ("CRIPA"). 
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Attorneys for the United States conducted inspections ofthe Jail facilities on June 9-13, 2008, 

June 16-20, 2008, and April 7-8, 2009, together with expert consultants in the fields of 

corrections, custodial medical and mental health care, suicide prevention, and environmental and 

fire safety. During the inspections, the United States and its expert consultants conducted 

interviews ofMDCR officials and staff, and reviewed MDCR policies and procedures, reports, 

prisoner files, medical records, and other pertinent documents. On August 24, 2011, the United 

States issued a findings letter pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1997 concluding that certain conditions at 

the Facility violated the constitutional rights of individuals confmed at the Facility. 

On July 9, 2012, the Plaintiff submitted a settlement proposal to the Defendants for 

review and comment. The Parties have engaged in extensive settlement negotiations and have 

agreed to bifurcate the settlement into two agreements: (1) a private agreement to addresses 

certain remedial measures regarding protection of MDCR inmates from physical and sexual 

violence and fire safety hazards; and (2) the Consent Agreement, before this Court, to address 

the provision of medical and mental health care and suicide prevention measures at the Jail 

facilities. Both agreements are aimed at addressing all outstanding remedial measures. The 

Consent Agreement is a comprehensive settlement designed to remedy the deficiencies alleged 

by Plaintiff in the Complaint and to ensure constitutional conditions of confmement for all 

MDCR inmates. 

To avoid the burdens of contested litigation and provide for a fair, adequate, and 

reasonable resolution that is narrowly tailored to remedy the violations alleged, the Parties 

2 
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request that the Court enter the attached Consent Agreement as an order of the Court. 

I. LEGAL STANDARD 

There is a "strong judicial policy favoring settlement as well as the realization that 

compromise is the essence of the settlement." Bennett v. Behring Corp., 737 F.2d 982, 986 (11 

Cir. 1984); see Murchison v. Grand Cypress Hotel Corp., 13 F.3d 1483, 1486 (11th Cir.1994) 

("[S]ettlements are favored and encouraged in order to conserve judicial resources"). When 

approving a consent decree, this Court should ascertain that the settlement is "fair, adequate and 

reasonable as between the parties." In re Smith, 926 F.2d 1027, 1028-29 (11th Cir. 1991); see 

United States v. City of Miami, 664 F.2d 435,441 (5th Cir. 1981). District courts should 

"approve consent decrees so long as they are not unconstitutional, unlawful, unreasonable, or 

contrary to public policy." Cotton v. Hinton, 559 F.2d 1326, 1330 (5th Cir.1977); see Howard v. 

McLucas, 871 F .2d 1000, 1008 (11th Cir.1989) (holding that a court should determine whether a 

consent decree "represent[s] a reasonable factual and legal determination based on the record, 

and ensure that it [does] not violate federal law"). 

Additionally, because the Consent Agreement constitutes prospective relief regarding 

prison conditions, the Court must find that the Agreement complies with the Prison Litigation 

Reform Act ("PLRA"), 18 U.S.C. § 3626. The PLRA requires that the Court fmd the Consent 

Agreement extends no further than necessary to correct the violation of the Federal right, and 

make findings that the "relief is narrowly drawn, extends no further than necessary to correct the 

violation of the Federal right, and is the least intrusive means necessary to correct the violation 

3 
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ofthe Federal right." 18 U.S.C. § 3626(a) & (c). 

II. DISCUSSION 

This Court should approve the Consent Agreement because the settlement is "fair, 

adequate and reasonable as between the parties." Smith, 926 F.2d at1028-29. The Court should, 

therefore, examine it carefully to ascertain not only that it is a fair settlement but also that it does 

not put the Court's sanction on and power behind a decree that violates the Constitution, statute, 

or jurisprudence. City of Miami, 664 F.2d at 441. 

A. The Consent Agreement Resolves the Genuine Dispute Between the Parties. 

On April2, 2008, the United States notified Miami-Dade County officials of its intention 

to investigate conditions of confinement at MDCR, pursuant to CRlP A. On August 24, 2011, 

the United States issued a detailed Findings Letter pursuant to CRIP A concluding that certain 

conditions at MDCR violated the constitutional rights of inmates confined at MDCR. 

Specifically, the United States found, inter alia, that Defendants failed to provide inmates with 

adequate medical and mental health care, including proper suicide prevention measures. 

Defendants share Plaintiff's goal of ensuring constitutional conditions at MDCR. The 

Parties agree that the Consent Agreement resolves the claims alleged in the Complaint and, when 

implemented, will ensure constitutional conditions at the MDCR Jail facilities. As such, the 

Consent Agreement currently before the Court will resolve the Parties' disputes in the most 

effective manner. Voluntary compliance through a consent decree is more likely to accomplish 

the statutory goals than will orders imposed at the end of bitter and protracted litigation. City of 

Miami, 664 F. 2d at 441; see United States v. City of Jackson, Miss., 519 F .2d 114 7, 1152 n.9 

(5th Cir. 1975) ("Because ofthe consensual nature ofthe decree, voluntary compliance is 

4 
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rendered more likely. . . At the same time, the parties ... minimize costly litigation and adverse 

publicity and avoid the collateral effects of adjudicated guilt."). 

B. The Consent Agreement Provides Fair, Adequate, and Reasonable Relief. 

A comprehensive investigation followed by several negotiations resulted in a Consent 

Agreement that is fair, adequate, and reasonable. The United States' CRIPA investigation and 

the details included in its findings letter clearly establish an adequate factual record supporting 

the legitimacy of the Consent Agreement. The United States is intimately familiar with the 

conditions and practices at MDCR and spent months negotiating a Consent Agreement that will 

address the deficiencies identified in the Findings Letter and the Complaint. 

The Consent Agreement consists of 21 substantive sections, containing comprehensive 

provisions on medical care, mental health care, and suicide prevention. These comprehensive 

provisions directly coincide with the particular constitutional violations that Plaintiff alleges in 

the Complaint. The substantive provisions will ensure that Defendants provide constitutionally 

adequate medical and mental health care, including medical and mental health intake screening 

and assessments; referral and treatment for MDCR inmates' serious medical and mental health 

needs; acute and chronic medical care; appropriate medication administration and management; 

and discharge planning. The Consent Agreement also ensures constitutionally adequate suicide 

prevention measures for MDCR inmates, including inmate suicide risk assessments and 

monitoring; staff training to recognize suicide risk and take appropriate action; and mortality and 

morbidity reviews in the event of a suicide or serious attempt. The Consent Agreement further 

sets out collaborative processes for achieving and maintaining staffing levels to implement the 

Agreement's substantive provisions and quality assurance mechanisms for Defendants to self­

assess their compliance with this Agreement and with constitutional standards. 

5 
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The Consent Agreement satisfies all the requisite standards to be found to be fair, 

adequate, and reasonable. All Parties have validly consented to this Agreement. The Agreement 

does not unreasonably or illegally affect third parties. The Agreement does not violate the 

Constitution, any statutes or public policy. In fact, the Agreement secures the constitutional 

rights of inmates at the Jail. More specifically, the Consent Agreement provides inmates with 

substantial benefits addressing conditions of confinement relating to substantial constitutional 

concerns, including: implementation of adequate policies and procedures; intake screening, 

evaluation, and referral; health assessments; access to medical and mental health care; 

medication administration; acute and chronic care; mental health treatment; custodial segregation 

and mental health; suicide assessment and prevention; mental health care housing; removal of 

suicide hazards from cells; staffing and training; discharge planning; and quality assurance 

measures. All of these measures will have a profound impact on the adequacy of medical care 

and mental health care and suicide prevention measures at the Jail. The Parties agree that the 

measures outlined in the Consent Agreements' provisions are narrowly drawn and extend no 

further than necessary to remedy the constitutional violations alleged in the United States' 

Complaint. The Court should approve the Consent Agreement as fair, adequate and reasonable 

and make the ultimate finding as required by the PLRA - that the terms of the Agreement 

comply, without qualification, with the provisions of 18 U.S.C. § 3626(a) concerning prospective 

relief. 

The Parties agree that the implementation of the Consent Agreement will begin 

immediately upon the effective date and shall terminate when the Defendants have achieved 

substantial compliance with each provision of the Consent Agreement and have sustained 

substantial compliance for a period of 18 months. The Consent Agreement provides that, until 

6 
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such termination, this Court shall retain jurisdiction over the implementation of the Agreement at 

the existing MDCR Jail facilities or any other facility used to replace or supplement the MDCR 

Jail facilities for all purposes. 

A jointly selected independent monitor, who is financed by the Defendants, shall monitor 

for compliance with the Consent Agreement, with assistance from subject matter experts who 

may be necessary to monitor particular subsections of the Agreement. The Agreement requires 

the monitor to submit bi-yearly compliance reports to the Court and the Parties. 

The Parties agree that the relief provided by the Consent Agreement adequately resolves 

the claims raised in the Complaint in a fair and reasonable manner. 

C. The Consent Agreement is Not the Result of Collusion. 

Before approving a settlement as fair, adequate, and reasonable, the district court must 

find that it "is not the product of collusion between the parties." Bennett, 737 F.2d 982, 986. The 

Consent Agreement is the result of an extensive investigation by the United States that 

commenced on April2, 2008. The Parties conducted informed meetings since the United States 

issued its Findings on August 24, 2011. In June 2012, the United States began settlement 

discussions with Miami-Dade County officials and the Parties conducted months of arms-length 

negotiations. 

The Parties in the instant case are experienced litigators who engaged in "a process of 

compromise in which 'in exchange for the savings of cost and elimination of risk, the parties 

each give up something they might have won had they proceeded with litigation."' Jackson, 519 

F.2d at 1152, quoting United States v. Armour & Co., 402 U.S. 673, 682 (1971). The respective 

duties of each government agency towards those they represent, provides this Court with 

assurance that the Consent Agreement is not the product of collusion. See Cotton, 559 F.2d 

7 
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1326, 1330 (finding that the Court should rely on the judgment of experienced counsel for the 

parties when determining when a settlement is fair, adequate, and reasonable). Moreover, 

compliance with the PLRA' s narrow tailoring requirements ensures that the Consent Agreement 

is specifically targeted at achieving and maintaining constitutional conditions of confinement at 

the MDCR Jail facilities. 

D. The Consent Agreement Complies with the PLRA. 

The settlement negotiations ensured that the relief in the Consent Agreement is narrowly 

tailored to correct the particular constitutional violations alleged in the Complaint. The Parties 

stipulate that this Consent Agreement complies in all respects with the provisions of the PLRA, 

18 U.S.C. § 3626. The Parties further stipulate that the prospective relief in this Consent 

Agreement is narrowly drawn, extends no further than necessary to correct the violations of 

federal rights as alleged by the Plaintiff in the Complaint, is the least intrusive means necessary 

to correct these violations, and will not have an adverse impact on public safety or the operation 

of a criminal justice system. Accordingly, the Parties agree and represent that this Consent 

Agreement complies in all respects with the provisions of 18 U.S.C. § 3626(a) & (c). 

III. CONCLUSION 

For the reasons above, this Court should find that the Consent Agreement is a fair, 

adequate, and reasonable resolution of the lawsuit. Additionally, this Court should find that the 

Consent Agreement is narrowly tailored to correct the particular constitutional violations alleged 

in the Complaint, and that the Consent Agreement complies in all respects with the PLRA. The 

Parties therefore jointly request that this Court approve the Consent Agreement in its entirety as 

to the United States' Complaint and enter it as an order of the Court. 

8 
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Respectfully submitted this (sf-day of . 4~ 
FOR THE UNITED STATES: 

'2013. 

By: --J-'/&UM.~~;;;:::_~~~t::. 
V nica Harrell~J es 

sistant U.S. Attorney 
outhern District ofFlorida 

ROY L. AUSTIN, JR. 
Deputy Assistant Attorney General 
Civil · ts Division 

Special Litigation Section 
LAURA L. COON 
Special Counsel 
Special Litigation Section 
REGINA M. JANSEN 

~------------------~---------------------Tn&J\tfumey 

·9 

United States Department of Justice 
Civil Rights Division 
Special Litigation Section 
950 Pennsylvania A venue, NW 
Washington, D.C. 20530 
Email: regina.jansen@usdoj.gov 
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FOR THE DEFENDANTS 
MIAM1-DADE COUNTY: 

8.~ 
Bernardo Pastor 
Assistant County Attorney 
Stephen P. Clark Center, Suite 281 0 
111 N.W. 1st Street 
Miami, Flmida 3 3128-1993 
'feh -~0-5jy~r7-S"4SQ6- -- -· -- · 
Fax: (305) 375-5611 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

Case No.: 13-21570-Civ-Zloch 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 
) 

PLAINTIFF, ) 
) 

v. ) 
) 

MIAMI-DADECOUNTY; ) 
MIAMI-DADE COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY ) 
COMMISSIONERS; MIAMI-DADE COUNTY ) 
PUBLIC HEALTH TRUST ) 

) 
DEFENDANTS. ) ______________________________ ) 

CONSENT AGREEMENT 
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I. INTRODUCTION 

1. The purpose of this Consent Agreement ("Agreement") is to remedy the alleged 
constitutional violations at the Miami-Dade County Jail identified in the findings letter that 
the United States issued on August 24, 2011 ("Findings Letter"). The Jail is an integral part 
of the public safety system in Miami-Dade County, Florida. Through the provisions of this 
Agreement, the Parties seek to ensure that the conditions in the Jail respect the rights of 
inmates confined there. By ensuring that the conditions in the Jail are constitutional, 
Miami-Dade County, the Miami-Dade County Board of Commissioners, and the Miami­
Dade County Public Health Trust will also provide for the safety of staff and promote public 
safety in the community. 

2. Plaintiff is the United States. 

3. Defendants are: (1) Miami-Dade County ("County"); (2) the Miami-Dade County Board of 
County Commissioners; and (3) the Miami-Dade County Public Health Trust. Defendants 
shall ensure that the Miami-Dade County Corrections and Rehabilitation Department 
("MDCR"), Corrections Health Services of Jackson Memorial Hospital and all other 
agencies and individuals under their control take all actions necessary to comply with the 
provisions of this Agreement. 

4. MDCR operates correctional facilities in Miami, Florida (collectively known as "MDCR 
Jail facilities" or "the Jail") and is responsible for providing care, custody, and control of 
prisoners. The Jail currently consists of 6 corrections facilities and currently houses 
approximately 5,200 inmates in a complex of buildings spread out across the county, well 
below the design capacity of 5,845. 

5. On April 2, 2008, the United States Department of Justice ("DOJ'') notified Miami-Dade 
County officials of its intention to investigate conditions at the MDCR facilities, pursuant to 
the Civil Rights oflnstitutionalized Persons Act ("CRIPA"), 42 U.S.C. § 1997. The DOJ 
toured the MDCR Jail facilities with consultants in the fields of corrections, medical and 
mental health care, suicide prevention, fire safety and environmental health and safety on 
June 9- 13 and June 16-20, 2008, and on April 7-8, 2009. 

6. On August 24,2011, the DOJ issued a Findings Letter, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1997 (a) (1), 
which concluded that certain conditions in the MDCR Jail violated the constitutional rights 
of inmates, and recommended remedial measures. Under cover letter dated September 27, 
2011, the County provided to DOJ substantial documentation of changes and measures 
implemented at the MDCR facilities since the time of the DOJ inspections. On October 4, 
2011, County representatives met with DOJ in Washington, D.C., to discuss the 
aforementioned documentation of remedial measures undertaken by the MDCR Jail 
facilities. 

4 
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7. At the request ofMDCR, the DOJ conducted an additional tour ofthe MDCR Jail facilities 
with consultants on November 30 -December 2, 2011. Based upon this inspection, the 
DOJ concluded that some of the violations identified in its Findings Letter were improved, 
while other conditions still warranted remedial efforts. 

8. Throughout the course of the investigation and inspection of the MDCR Jail facilities, the 
DOJ received complete cooperation from the County and unfettered access to all facilities, 
documents and staff. In addition, DOJ acknowledges that the County made significant 
improvements in many areas of Jail operations and the physical plant since its initial Jail 
tours in 2008. This Agreement is the result of a cooperative effort that evinces a 
commitment to constitutional conditions at the MDCR Jail facilities on the part of the 
United States and Defendants. Through the provisions of this Consent Agreement, the 
Parties seek to avoid the risks and burdens of litigation while ensuring that the conditions in 
the Jail are constitutional so as to respect the rights of inmates and provide for the safety of 
staff. 

9. This Consent Agreement only addresses provisions regarding medical care, mental health 
care, and suicide prevention. A separate Agreement between the United States and the 
County and its entities addresses protection from harm, fire and life safety, and inmate 
grievances. 

10. No person or entity is intended to be a third-party beneficiary of this Agreement for 
purposes of any civil, criminal, or administrative action. Accordingly, no person or entity 
may assert any claim or right as a beneficiary or protected class under this Agreement. This 
Agreement is not intended to impair or expand the right of any person or entity to seek relief 
against the County or its officials, employees, or agents, for their conduct. This Agreement 
is not intended to alter legal standards governing any such claims. 

11. For the purposes of this lawsuit only and in order to settle this matter, Defendants stipulate, 
and this Court finds, that the conditions at the MDCR Jail facilities necessitate the remedial 
measures contained in this Agreement, including medical, mental health and suicide 
provisions. The County, MDCR and the United States entered into a separate Settlement 
Agreement regarding protection from harm, fire and life safety, and inmate grievances. 

12. The Parties stipulate that this Agreement complies in all respects with the Prison Litigation 
Reform Act, 18 U.S.C. § 3626(a). The Parties further stipulate and the Court finds that the 
prospective relief in this Agreement is narrowly drawn, extends no further than necessary to 
correct the violations of federal rights as alleged by United States in its Complaint and 
Findings Letter (attached as Exhibit "A"), is the least intrusive means necessary to correct 
these violations, and will not have an adverse impact on public safety or the operation of a 
criminal justice system. Accordingly, the Parties represent, and this Court finds, that the 
Agreement complies in all respects with 18 U.S.C. § 3626(a). 

5 
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II. DEFINITIONS 

1. "CHS" refers to Corrections Health Services of Jackson Memorial Hospital, the medical 
provider for the MDCR Jail facilities on behalf of the Public Health Trust. 

2. "Compliance" is discussed throughout this Agreement in the following terms: substantial 
compliance, partial compliance, and non-compliance. "Substantial Compliance" indicates 
that Defendants have achieved compliance with most or all components of the relevant 
provision of the Agreement. "Partial Compliance" indicates that Defendants achieved 
compliance on some of the components of the relevant provision of the Agreement, but 
significant work remains. "Non-compliance" indicates that Defendants have not met most 
or all of the components of the Agreement. 

3. "Custodial Segregation" is the solitary confinement of an inmate to a specific secure 
housing unit or single cell that is separated from the general population continuously for 15 
or more hours a day. There are three forms of segregation: Administrative, Disciplinary 
Detention and Protective Custody. 

4. "Effective date" means the date the Agreement is entered as an order of the Court. 

5. "Include" or "including" means "include, but not be limited to" or "including, but not 
limited to." 

6. "Inmates" or "Inmate" broadly refers to one or more individuals detained at, or otherwise 
housed, held, in the custody of, or confined in the JaiL 

7. "Interdisciplinary Team" refers to a team consistiDg oftreatment staff from various 
disciplines, including medical, nursing, and mental health and one or more members from 
corrections. 

8. "Interdisciplinary Treatment Plan" refers to an individualized plan that is based on 
assessments, identifies the care needs, and develops strategies to meet those needs. The 
purpose of the plan is to transition the inmate through the continuum of care in a safe and 
effective way. In order to accomplish this goal, the plan documents treatment goals and 
objectives; states criteria for terminating specific interventions; and documents the inmate's 
progress in meeting the goals and objectives. The plan requires that each discipline must 
collaborate in the assessment and reassessment of the patient, and then integrate 
interdisciplinary documentation of needs, goals, strategies and interventions. Disciplines 
represented shall include, at a minimum, medical, mental health, and custodial staff. 

9. "Jail" refers to all correctional facilities operated by the Miami-Dade County Corrections 
and Rehabilitation Department and includes: the Pre-Trial Detention Center ("PTDC"); the 
Women's Detention Center ("WDC"); the Training and Treatment Center ("Stockade"); the 
Turner Guilford Knight Correctional Center ("TGK"); the Metro West Detention Center 
("MWDC"), and any facility that is built, leased, or otherwise used, to replace or 
supplement the current the MDCR Jail facilities, tcluding the anticipated correctional 
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mental health facility ("Mental Health Treatment Center"). Additionally, MDCR operates a 
boot camp program, with a housing facility adjacent to TGK ("Boot Camp"). 

10. "Long-term custodial segregation" means a period of custodial segregation intended to last, 
or that does last, more than 14 consecutive days. 

11. "Levels of Care" shall be defined as follows: 

a. Levell. Inmates deemed appropriate :flor this level of care meet the following 
criteria: 

(1) Persistent/imminent danger of harm to self or others. 
(2) Performed a self-injurious act, with the clear intention of suicide. 
(3) Inmate placed on suicide precaution. 
( 4) Inmate who is unable to maintain a minimal level of personal hygiene. 

b. Level II. Inmates deemed appropriate for this level of care meet the following 
criteria: 

(1) Inmate who engages in an act of self-mutilation without the intent to 
commit suicide, and without psychotic symptoms. 

(2) Inmate with some notable impairment in reality testing, or gross level of 
psychotic process. 

(3) Inmate with significant, rapid decline in baseline level of functioning 
(isolative from family/friends, new onset poor judgment, decline or 
oscillations in mood, etc.). 

c. Level III. Inmates deemed appropriate for this level of care meet the following 
criteria: 

(1) Inmate with Mood Disorders with moderate to severe levels of 
impairment, and unable to function in the general population. 

(2) Inmate with Anxiety Disorders with moderate to severe levels of 
impairment, and are unable to function in the general population. 

(3) Inmate with Thought Disorders and are not acutely psychotic, and stable 
with current medication regimen. These individuals are able to function 
in a less restrictive environment other than the general population. 

( 4) Inmates with documented explosive anger outbursts, and frequent 
impulsive acts with recent observed improvement in frequency and 
intensity of these episodes. 

d. Level IV. Inmates deemed appropriate for this level of care meet the following 
criteria: 

(1) Inmates with stable psychiatric symptoms and on a current regimen of 
psychotropic medications. 

12. "Mental Health Review Committee" refers to a group consisting of CHS Director, CHS 
Medical Director, CHS Lead Psychiatrist, Lead Social Worker, Assistant Director MDCR, 
MDCR Medical Liaison, and related clinical disciplines. 
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13. "Monitor" means the individual selected to oversee implementation of the Agreement. 

14. "Privacy of Care" or "Private Assessments" means discussions of patient information and 
clinical encounters are conducted in private and carried out in a manner designed to 
encourage the patient's subsequent use of health services. 

15. "Psychotropic medication" means any substance used in the treatment of mental health 
problems or mental illness that exerts an effect on the mind and is capable of modifying 
mental activity or behavior. 

16. "Qualified Health Care Professionals" and "Qualified Medical Staff' refer to Qualified 
Medical Professionals and Qualified Nursing Staff, as well as other Qualified Health Care 
Professional staff providing services within the scope of their practice, licensure, training, 
supervision and qualifications. 

17. "Qualified Medical Professional" means a physician, physician assistant, or nurse 
practitioner, who is currently licensed by the State of Florida to deliver those health care 
services he or she has undertaken to provide. 

18. "Qualified Mental Health Professional" includes psychiatrists, psychologists, psychiatric 
social workers, psychiatric nurses, and others who by virtue of their education, credentials, 
and experience are permitted by law to evaluate and care for the mental health needs of 
patients. 

19. "Qualified Mental Health Staff' refers to Qualified Health Care Professionals who have 
received instruction and supervision in identifying and interacting with individuals in need 
of Mental Health Services. 

20. "Qualified Nursing Staff' means registered nurses and licensed practical nurses currently 
licensed by Florida to deliver those health care services he or she has undertaken to provide. 

21. "Quality Improvement Committee" refers to an appointed group consisting of one or more 
members of Jail operations, the medical department, mental health department and related 
clinical disciplines, corrections and a risk manager. 

22. "Serious injury" means any injury that requires immediate medical attention or 
hospitalization. 

23. "Serious mental illness" ("SMI") means a mental, behavioral, or emotional disorder of 
mood, thought, or anxiety that significantly impairs judgment, behavior, capacity to 
recognize reality, or ability to cope with the ordinary demands oflife. 

24. "Serious suicide attempt" means a suicide attempt that is either potentially life-threatening 
or that requires hospitalization for medical treatment. 

8 
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25. "Special Management Units" mean those housing units of the Jail designated for inmates in 
administrative or disciplinary custodial segregation, in protective custody, on suicide 
precautions, or with mental illness. 

26. "Suicide Precautions" means any level of watch, observation, or measures to prevent self­
harm. 

27. "Sustain Implementation" means to achieve a prolonged and continuous practice. 

28. "Train" means to instruct in the skills addressed to a level that the trainee has demonstrated 
proficiency. "Trained" means to have achieved such proficiency in the skills and to 
implement those skills regularly. The majority of training shall be in person, with online 
training functioning as a supplement rather than a stand-alone option. The County will 
document and track training of all staff. 

29. "Threshold" means requiring a certain level of intervention due to a serious event or a 
number of serious events. 

30. "Trigger" means an event or events, like a suicide or serious suicide attempt, which causes 
the County to self-assess. 

9 
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III. SUBSTANTIVE PROVISIONS 

Defendants shall take all actions necessary to colply with the substantive provisions of this 
Agreement detailed below. Compliance with the Agree ent will be measured both by whether the 
technical provisions are implemented and whether the co ditions of confinement in the Jail meet 
the requirements of the United States Constitution. 1 

A. MEDICAL AND MENTAL HEALTH CARE I 

Defendants shall ensure constitutionally adequate treatment of inmates' medical and mental 
health needs. Defendants' efforts to achieve th~s constitutionally adequate treatment will 
include the following remedial measures regar:ding: (1) Intake Screening; (2) Health 
Assessments; (3) Access to Medical and Mental ~ealth Care; (4) Medication Administration 
and Management; (5) Record Keeping; (6) Discharge Planning; and (7) Mortality and 
Morbidity Reviews. 

1. Intake Screening 

a. Qualified Medical Staff shall su~tain implementation of the County Pre­
Booking policy, revised ·May 2012, and the County Intake Procedures, 
adopted May 2012, which req~ire, inter alia, staff to conduct intake 
screenings in a confidential setting as soon as possible upon inmates' 
admission to the Jail, before bein~ transferred from the intake area, and no 
later than 24 hours after admissi~m. Qualified Nursing Staff shall sustain 
implementation of the Jail and Cij:S's Intake Procedures, implemented May 
2012, and the Mental Health Screening and Evaluation form, revised May 
2012, which require, inter alia, staff to identify and record observable and 
non-observable medical and me~tal health needs, and seek the inmate's 
cooperation to provide informatio~. 

b. 

c. 

CHS shall sustain its policy and! procedure implemented in May 2012 in 
which all inmates received a mental health screening and evaluation meeting 

I 

all compliance indicators of Nati~nal Commission on Correctional Health 
Care J-E-05. This screening shall qe conducted as part of the intake screening 
process upon admission. All inmates who screen positively shall be referred 
to qualified mental health professionals for further evaluation. 

I 

Inmates identified as in need of constant observation, emergent and urgent 
mental health care shall be referre~ immediately to Qualified Mental Health 
Professionals for evaluation, whe11 clinically indicated. The Jail shall house 
incoming inmates at risk of suici<ile in suicide-resistant housing unless and 
until a Qualified Mental Health Prpfessional clears them in writing for other 
housing. 
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d. 

e. 

f. 

g. 

Inmates identified as "emergency referral" for mental health or medical care 
shall be under constant observation by staff until they are seen by the 
Qualified Mental Health or Medicf Professional. 

CHS shall obtain previous medica~ records to include any off-site specialty or 
inpatient care as determined clinidally necessary by the qualified health care 
professionals conducting the intakt screening. 

I 

CHS shall sustain implementatio~ of the intake screening form and mental 
health screening and evaluation form revised in May 2012, which assesses 
drug or alcohol use and withdra'fal. New admissions determined to be in 
withdrawal or at risk for withdrawal shall be referred immediately to the 
practitioner for further evaluation rlnd placement in Detox. 

CHS shall ensure that all Qu~lified Nursing Staff performing intake 
screenings receive comprehens~ve training concerning the policies, 
procedures, and practices for the sdreening and referral processes. 

2. Health Assessments 

a. Qualified Medical Staff shall sustain implementation of CHS Policy J-E-04 
(Initial Health assessment), revis{d May 2012, which requires, inter alia, 
staff to use standard diagnostic to9ls to administer preventive care to inmates 
within 14 days of entering the program. 

I 

b. Qualified Mental Health Staff wip complete all mental health assessments 
incorporating, at a minimum, the ~sessment factors described in Appendix 
A. 

c. Qualified Mental Health Profe~sionals shall perform a mental health 
assessment following any adverse I triggering event while an inmate remains 
in the MDCR Jail facilities' custody, as set forth in Appendix A. 

I 

d. Qualified Mental Health Professionals, as part of the inmate's 
interdisciplinary treatment team (outlined in the "Risk Management" Section, 
irifra), will maintain a risk profile I for each inmate based on the Assessment 
Factors identified in Appendix, A and will develop and implement 
interventions to minimize the risk 6fharm to each inmate. 

I 

I 

e. An inmate assessed with chronic disease shall seen by a practitioner as soon 
as possible but no later than 24-h~urs after admission as a part of the Initial 
Health Assessment, when Clinical~y indicated. At that time medication and 
appropriate labs, as determined by the practitioner, shall be ordered. The 
inmate will then be enrolled ih the chronic care program, including 
scheduling of an initial chronic disease clinic visit. 
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3. 

f. 

g. 

All new admissions will receiv~ an intake screening and mental health 
screening and evaluation upon arrival. If clinically indicated, the inmate will 
be referred as soon as possible, brtt no longer than 24-hours, to be seen by a 
practitioner as a part of the Itlitial Health Assessment. At that time, 
medication and appropriate lab~ as determined by the practitioner are 
ordered. 1 

All individuals performing healthl assessments shall receive comprehensive 
training concerning the policies, rrocedures, and practices for medical and 
mental health assessments and referrals. 

I 

Access to Medical and Mental Health Care 

a. Defendants shall ensure inmates ~ave adequate access to health care with a 
medical and mental health care request system, ("sick call" process), for 
inmates. The sick call process shar include: 

( 1) written medical and mental health care slips available in English, 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

Spanish, and Creole; I 

opportunity for illiterate iqmates and inmates who have physical or 
cognitive disabilities to cbnfidentially access medical and mental 
health care. I 

a confidential collection method in which designated members of the 
Qualified Medical and Q~alified Mental Health staff collects the 
request slips every day; and 

an effective system for scr~ening and prioritizing medical and mental 
health requests within 24 Hours of submission and priority review for 
inmate grievances identifiJd as emergency medical or mental health 
care. 

b. CHS shall continue to ensure all I medical and mental health care staff are 
adequately trained to identify i~ates in need of acute or chronic care, and 
medical and mental health care staff shall provide treatment or referrals for 
such inmates. 

1 

4. Medication Administration and Managfment 

a. CHS shall develop and implemept policies and procedures to ensure the 
accurate administration of medication and maintenance of medication 

b. 

I 

records. 1 

Within eight months of the Effective Date, CHS shall develop and implement 
a medication continuity system so ~hat incoming inmates receive medications 
for serious medical and mental he 1 th needs in a timely manner, as medically 
appropriate and as follows: 

12 
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c. 

d. 

e. 

f. 

(1) 

(2) 

Upon an inmate's entry to the Jail, a Qualified Medical or Mental 
I 

Health Professional shall decide and document the clinical 
justification to continue, d'scontinue, or change an inmate's reported 
medication for serious medical or mental health needs, and the inmate 
shall receive the first dos1

1 

of any prescribed medication within 24 
hours of entering the Jail; 

A medical doctor or psychiatrist shall evaluate, in person, inmates 
with serious medical or mdntal health needs, within 48 hours of entry 
to the Jail. 

Psychiatrists shall conduct review~ of the use of psychotropic medications to 
ensure that each inmate's prescrib~d regimen is appropriate and effective for 
his or her condition. These re!views should occur on a regular basis, 
according to how often the Level pf Care requires the psychiatrist to see the 
inmate. CHS shall document this review in the inmate's unified medical and 
mental health record. I 

CHS shall ensure nursing staff pre-sets psychotropic medications in unit 
doses or bubble packs before delilvery. If an inmate housed in a designated 
mental health special management I unit refuses to take his or her psychotropic 
medication for more than 24 hourf, the medication administering staff must 
provide notice to the psychiatrist.! A Qualified Mental Health Professional 
must see the inmate within 24 hoW's of this notice. 

I 

CHS shall implement physician qrders for medication and laboratory tests 
within three days of the order, unless the inmate is an "emergency referral," 
which requires immediately impl~1 enting orders. 

Within 120 days of the Effective Date, CHS shall provide its medical and 
mental health staff with doc ented training on proper medication 
administration practices. This tr~ning shall become part of annual training 
for medical and mental health staff. 

5. Record Keeping 

a. CHS shall ensure that medical abd mental health records are adequate to 
assist in providing and managing: the medical and mental health needs of 
inmates. CHS shall fully implem€nt an Electronic Medical Records System 
to ensure records are centrali4d, complete, accurate, legible, readily 
accessible by all medical and !mental health staff, and systematically 
organized. 1 

b. CHS shall implement an electronic scheduling system to provide an adequate 
scheduling system to ensure that +ental health professionals see mentally ill 
inmates as clinically appropriat~, in accordance with this Agreement's 
requirements, regardless of whe er the inmate is prescribed psychotropic 
medications. 
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c. CHS shall document all clinical ~ncounters in the inmates' health records, 
including intake health screening, intake health assessments, and reviews of 
inmates. 

d. CHS shall submit medical and mental health information to outside providers 
when inmates are sent out of th~ Jail for health care. CHS shall obtain 
records of care, reports, and~"agnostic tests received during outside 
appointments and timely imple ent specialist recommendations (or a 
physician should properly doc ent appropriate clinical reasons for non­
implementation). 

6. Discharge Planning 

a. CHS shall provide discharge/tr . sfer planning for planned discharges of 
those inmates with serious healt~ needs to ensure continuity of care upon 
inmates' release. These services sfuall include: 

(1) Arranging referrals for i ates with chronic medical health problems 
or serious mental illness. All referrals will be made to Jackson 
Memorial Hospital where each inmate/patient has an open medical 
record; 

(2) Providing a bridge supply pf medications of up to 7 days to inmates 
upon release until inmatesl can reasonably arrange for continuity of 
care in the community or Jntil they receive initial dosages at transfer 
facilities. Upon intake acJf.ission, all inmates will be informed in 
writing and in the inmate handbook they may request bridge 
medications and community referral upon release. 

(3) Adequate discharge plannihg is contingent on timely notification by 
custody for those inmates with planned released dates. For those 
inmates released by court or bail with no opportunity for CHS to 
discuss discharge planning, bridge medication and referral assistance 
will be provided to those I released inmates who request assistance 
within 24-hours of releasf. Information will be available in the 
handbook and intake admission awareness paper. CHS will follow 
released inmates with sehously critical illness or communicable 
diseases within seven days! of release by notification to last previous 
address. 1 
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7. Mortality and Morbidity Reviews 

a. 

b. 

c. 

I 

Defendants shall sustain implerhentation of the MDCR Mortality and 
Morbidity "Procedures in the Ev*t of an Inmate Death," updated February 
2012, which requires, inter alia, a team of interdisciplinary staff to conduct a 
comprehensive mortality review d corrective action plan for each inmate's 
death and a comprehensive morb~dity review and corrective action plan for 
all serious suicide attempts or oth~r incidents in which an inmate was at high 
risk for death. Defendants shall pr?vide results of all mortality and morbidity 
reviews to the Monitor and the Umted States, within 45 days of each death or 
serious suicide attempt. In cases ~here the final medical examiner report and 
toxicology takes longer than 45 days, a final mortality and morbidity review 
will be provided to the Monitor anf United States upon receipt. 

Defendants shall address any prf· lems identified during mortality reviews 
through training, policy revision, and any other developed measures within 
90 days of each death or serious s icide attempt. 

Defendants will review mortality ~d morbidity reports and corrective action 
plans bi-annually. Defendants shfll implement recommendations regarding 
the risk management system or o~her necessary changes in policy based on 
this review. Defendants will docrent the review and corrective action and 
provide it to the Monitor. 

B. MEDICAL CARE 

CHS shall ensure constitutionally adequate treatnent of inmates' medical needs. CHS's 
efforts to achieve this constitutionally adequate !treatment will include remedial measures 
regarding (1) Acute Care and Detoxification, (2) yhronic Care, and (3) Use of Force Care. 

I 

1. Acute Care and Detoxification 

a. 

b. 

c. 

CHS shall ensure that inmates' a~ute health needs are identified to provide 
adequate and timely acute medica~~care. 

CHS shall address serious medical needs of inmates immediately upon 
notification by the inmate or a mdmber of the MDCR Jail facilities' staff or 
CHS staff, providing acute care for inmates with serious and life-threatening 
conditions by a Qualified Medical rrofessional. 

CHS shall sustain implementatibn of the Detoxification Unit and the 
Intoxification Withdrawal policy, Jdopted on July 2012, which requires, inter 
alia, County to provide treatme~t, housing, and medical supervision for 
inmates suffering from drug and alcohol withdrawal. 

I 
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2. Chronic Care 

a. 

b. 

CHS shall sustain implementation I of the Corrections Health Service ("CHS") 
Policy J-G-01 (Chronic Disease Program), which requires, inter alia, that 
Qualified Medical Staff perfo:nl assessments of, and monitor, inmates' 
chronic illnesses, pursuant to written protocols. 

Per policy, physicians shall routi~ely see inmates with chronic conditions to 
evaluate the status of their healtJ;ij. and the effectiveness of the medication 
administered for their chronic conditions. 

3. Use of Force Care 

a. 

b. 

c. 

The Jail shall revise its policy regmding restraint monitoring to ensure that 
restraints are used for the minimurh amount of time clinically necessary, 

I 

restrained inmates are under 15-m~nute in-person visual observation by 
trained custody. Qualified MedicaJl Staff shall perform 15-minute checks on 
an inmate in restraints. For any c+tody-ordered restraints, Qualified 
Medical Staff shall be notified immediately in order to review the health 
record for any contraindications o~ accommodations required and to initiate 
health monitoring. 

The Jail shall ensure that inmates receive adequate medical care immediately 
following a use of force. j 
Qualified Medical Staff shall ques ion, outside the hearing of other inmates 
or correctional officers, each inmaf who reports for medical care with an 
injury, regarding the cause of the i ~ury. If a health care provider suspects 
staff-on-inmate abuse, in the cours of the inmate's medical encounter, that 
health care provider shall immediaitely: 

I 

(1) take all practical steps to p¥serve evidence ofthe injury (e.g., 
photograph the injury and any other physical evidence); 

(2) 

(3) 

I 

report the suspected abuser the appropriate Jail administrator; and 

complete a Health Services Incident Addendum describing the 
incident. 

C. MENTAL HEALTH CARE AND SUICIDE P~VENTION 

Defendants shall ensure constitutional mental hel!llth treatment and protection of inmates at 
risk for suicide or self-injurious behavior. Defendants' efforts to achieve this 
constitutionally adequate mental health treatment and protection from self harm will include 
the following remedial measures regarding: (1) Referral Process and Access to Care; (2) 
Mental Health Treatment; (3) Suicide Asse sment and Prevention; (4) Review of 
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Disciplinary Measures; (5) Mental Health Care1 Housing; (6) Custodial Segregation; (7) 
I 

Staffing and Training; (8) Suicide Prevention Tra·ning; and (9) Risk Management. 

1. 

2. 

Referral Process and Access to Care 

a. CHS shall develop and implement! written policies and procedures governing 
the levels of referrals to a Qualifibd Mental Health Professional. Levels of 
referrals are based on acuteness! of need and must include "emergency 
referrals," "urgent referrals," and "routine referrals," as follows: 

(1) "Emergency referrals" sh~l include inmates identified as at risk of 
harming themselves or others, and placed on constant observation. 
These referrals also i~1 lude inmates determined as severely 
decompensated, or at risk of severe decompensation. A Qualified 
Mental Health Profession must see inmates designated "emergency 
referrals" within two hours~ and a psychiatrist within 24 hours (or the 
next business day), or sooner, if clinically indicated. 

(2) "Urgent referrals" shall in~lude inmates that Qualified Mental Health 
Staff must see within 24 h~urs, and a psychiatrist within 48 hours (or 
two business days), or soo~er, if clinically indicated. 

(3) "Routine referrals" shall intlude inmates that Qualified Mental Health 
Staff must see within fi~e days, and a psychiatrist within the 
following 48 hours, when !indicated for medication and/or diagnosis 
assessment, or sooner, if cl,nically indicated. 

b. CHS will ensure referrals to a ~ualified Mental Health Professional can 
occur at the time of initial screembg or 14-day assessment or at any time by 
inmate self-referral or by staff reft. 

I 

Mental Health Treatment 1 

a. 

b. 

c. 

CHS shall develop and implemen~ a policy for the delivery of mental health 
services that includes a continuup of services; provides for necessary and 
appropriate mental health staff; ipcludes treatment plans for inmates with 
serious mental illness; collects d3f; and contains mechanisms sufficient to 
measure whether CHS is providin~ constitutionally adequate care. 

CHS shall ensure adequate an~ timely treatment for inmates, whose 
assessments reveal mental illness and/or suicidal ideation, including timely 
and appropriate referrals for speci lty care and visits with Qualified Mental 
Health Professionals, as clinically fppropriate. 

Each inmate on the mental health caseload will receive a written initial 
treatment plan at the time of ev luation, to be implemented and updated 
during the psychiatric appointmen s dictated by the Level of Care. CHS shall 
keep the treatment plan in the inm te's mental health and medical record. 
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d. CHS shall provide each inmate o the mental health caseload who is a Level 
I or Level II mental health inmat and who remains in the Jail for 30 days 
with a written interdisciplinary reatment plan within 30 days following 
evaluation. CHS shall keep the tr atment plan in the inmate's mental health 
and medical record. 

e. The Jail currently houses Level I inmates in housing unit 9C. Any inmate 
who is housed in 9C (or equival nt housing) for seven continuous days or 
longer will have an interdisciplin plan of care within the next seven days 
and every 30 days thereafter. In addition, the County shall initiate 
documented contact and follow-u with the mental health coordinators in the 
State of Florida's criminal justice ystem to facilitate the inmate's movement 
through the criminal justice ompetency determination process and 
placement in an appropriate orensic mental health facility. The 
interdisciplinary team will: 

(1) Include the treating psy hiatrist, a custody representative, and 
medical and nursing st Whenever clinically appropriate, the 
inmate should participate i the treatment plan. 

(2) Meet to discuss and revie the inmate's treatment no less than once 
every 45 days for the first 90 days of care, and once every 90 days 
thereafter, or more freq ently if clinically indicated; with the 
exception being inmates h used on 9C (or equivalent housing) who 
will have an interdisciplin plan of care at least every 30 days. 

f. CHS will classify inmates diagn sed with mental illness according to the 
level of mental health care require to appropriately treat them. Level of care 
classifications will include Level I Level II, Level Ill, and Level IV. Levels I 
through IV are described in Defi itions (Section II.). Level of care will be 
classified in two stages: Stage I d Stage II. 

g. Stage I is defined as the period f time until the Mental Health Treatment 
Center is operational. In Stag I, group counseling sessions targeting 
education and coping skills will e provided, as clinically indicated, by the 
treating psychiatrist. In addition, ndividual counseling will be provided, as 
clinically indicated, by the treating psychiatrist. 

(1) Inmates classified as requir ng Level IV level of care will receive: 

1. managed care in th general population; 
11. psychotropic medic tion, as clinically appropriate; 
111. individual counsel ng and group counseling, as deemed 

clinically appropria e, by the treating psychiatrist; and 
IV. evaluation and asse sment by a psychiatrist at a frequency of 

no less than once e ery 90 days. 
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(2) Inmates classified as requi · g Level III level of care will receive: 

i. evaluation and stab "lizing in the appropriate setting; 
11. psychotropic medic tion, as clinically appropriate; 
m. evaluation and ass ssment by a psychiatrist at a frequency of 

no less than once e ery 30 days; 
IV. individual counsel ng and group counseling, as deemed 

clinically appropria e by the treating psychiatrist; and 
v. access to at least o e group counseling session per month or 

more, as clinically i dicated. 

(3) Inmates classified as requir"ng Level II level of care will receive: 

1. evaluation and stab"lizing in the appropriate setting; 
11. psychotropic medic tion, as clinically appropriate; 
111. private assessme t with a Qualified Mental Health 

Professional on a aily basis for the first five days and then 
once every seven d ys for two weeks; 

IV. evaluation and asse sment by a psychiatrist at a frequency of 
no less than once e ery 3 0 days; and 

v. access to individ 1 counseling and group counseling as 
deemed clinically a propriate by the treating psychiatrist. 

( 4) Inmates classified as requir ng Level I level of care will receive: 

1. evaluation and stab "lizing in the appropriate setting; 
11. immediate constant observation or suicide precautions; 
111. Qualified Mental ealth Professional in-person assessment 

within four hours, 
IV. psychiatrist in-pers n assessment within 24 hours of being 

placed at a crisis le el of care and daily thereafter 
v. psychotropic medic tion, as clinically appropriate; and 
vi. individual counsel ng and group counseling, as deemed 

clinically appropria e by the treating psychiatrist. 

h. Stage II will include an expans on of mental health care and transition 
services, a more therapeutic environment, collaboration with other 
governmental agencies and comm · ty organizations, and an enhanced level 
of care, which will be provided o ce the Mental Health Treatment Center is 
opened. The County and CHS "ll consult regularly with the United States 
and the Monitor to formulate a ore specific plan for implementation of 
Stage II. 
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1. CHS will provide clinically propriate follow-up care for inmates 
discharged from Level I consisf g of daily clinical contact with Qualified 
Mental Health Staff. CHS will rovide Level II level of care to inmates 
discharged from crisis level of car (Level I) until such time as a psychiatrist 
or interdisciplinary treatment te makes a clinical determination that a 
lower level of care is appropriate. 

J. CHS shall ensure Level I serv ces and acute care are available in a 
therapeutic environment, includin access to beds in a health care setting for 
short-term treatment (usually les than ten days) and regular, consistent 
therapy and counseling, as clinical y indicated. 

k. CHS shall conduct and provide to the Monitor and DOJ a documented 
quarterly review of a reliable an representative sample of inmate records 
demonstrating alignment amo g screening, assessment, diagnosis, 
counseling, medication manag ment, and frequency of psychiatric 
interventions. 

3. Suicide Assessment and Prevention 

a. Defendants shall develop and im lement a policy to ensure that inmates at 
risk of self harm are identified, pr tected, and treated in a manner consistent 
with the Constitution. At a minim , the policy shall: 

b. 

(1) Grant property and privil ges to acutely mentally ill and suicidal 
inmates upon clinical det rmination by signed orders of Qualified 
Mental Health Staff. 

(2) Ensure clinical staff makes decisions regarding clothing, bedding, and 
other property given to su· cidal inmates on a case-by-case basis and 
supported by signed orders of Qualified Mental Health Staff. 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

Ensure that each inmate o suicide watch has a bed and a suicide­
resistant mattress, and does not have to sleep on the floor. 

Ensure Qualified Mental Jealth Staff provide quality private suicide 
risk assessments of each sufcidal inmate on a daily basis. 

in a documented decision t place inmates in suicide watch cells. 

Ensure that staff does not rftaliate against inmates by sending them to 
suicide watch cells. Quali ted Mental Health Staff shall be involved 

When inmates present symptoms frisk of suicide and self harm, a Qualified 
Mental Health Professional shal conduct a suicide risk screening and 
assessment instrument that inclu es the factors described in Appendix A. 
The suicide risk screening and ass ssment instrument will be validated within 
180 days of the Effective Date and every 24 months thereafter. 
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c. County shall revise its Suicide Pre ention policy to implement individualized 
levels of observation of suicidal inmates as clinically indicated, including 
constant observation or interval isual checks. The MDCR Jail facilities' 
supervisory staff shall regularly check to ensure that corrections officers 
implement the ordered levels of o servation. 

d. CHS shall sustain implementatio of its Intake Procedures adopted in May 
2012, which specifies when th screening and suicide risk assessment 
instrument will be utilized. 

e. CHS shall ensure individualized treatment plans for suicidal inmates that 
include signs, symptoms, and prev ntive measures for suicide risk. 

f. Cut-down tools will continue to b immediately available to all Jail staff who 
may be first responders to suicide ttempts. 

g. The Jail will keep an emergenc response bag that includes appropriate 
equipment, including a first aid ki , CPR mask or Ambu bag, and emergency 
rescue tool in close proximity to a 1 housing units. All custodial and medical 
staff shall know the location ofthi emergency response bag and the Jail will 
train staff how to use its contents. 

h. County shall conduct and provid to the Monitor and DOJ a documented 
quarterly review of a reliable an representative sample of inmate records 
demonstrating: (1) adequate suici e screening upon intake, and (2) adequate 
suicide screening in response to suicidal and self-harming behaviors and 
other suicidal ideation. 

4. Review of Disciplinary Measures 

a. The Jail shall develop and im lement written policies for the use of 
disciplinary measures with regard o inmates with mental illness or suspected 
mental illness, incorporating the following: 

(1) the MDCR Jail facilities' staff shall consult with Qualified Mental 
Health Staff to determine hether initiating disciplinary procedures is 
appropriate for inmates e hibiting recognizable signs/symptoms of 
mental illness or identified · th mental illness; and 

(2) if a Qualified Mental He lth Staff determines the inmate's actions 
that are the subject of the d sciplinary proceedings are symptomatic of 
mental illness, no disciplin measure will be taken. 

b. A staff assistant must be availab e to assist mentally ill inmates with the 
disciplinary review process if inmate is not able to understand or 
meaningfully participate in the pro ess without assistance. 
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5. Mental Health Care Housing 

a. The Jail shall maintain a chroni care and/or special needs unit with an 
appropriate therapeutic environme t, for inmates who cannot function in the 
general population. 

b. The Jail shall remove suicide haza ds from all areas housing suicidal inmates 
or place all suicidal inmates on co stant observation. 

c. The Jail shall allow suicidal i ates to leave their cells for recreation, 
showers, and mental health trea ent, as clinically appropriate. If inmates 
are unable to leave their cells to participate in these activities, a Qualified 
Medical or Mental Health Profe sional shall document the individualized 
clinical reason and the duration i the inmate's mental health record. The 
Qualified Medical or Mental Heal Professional shall conduct a documented 
re-evaluation of this decision on daily basis when the clinical duration is 
not specified. 

d. County shall provide quarterly re orts to the Monitor and the United States 
regarding its status in developing e Mental Health Treatment Center. The 
Mental Health Treatment Center will commence operations by the end of 
2014. Once opened, County sha 1 conduct and report to the United States 
and the Monitor quarterly revie s of the capacity of the Mental Health 
Treatment Center as compared to the need for beds. The Parties will work 
together and with any appropria e non-Parties to expand the capacity to 
provide mental health care to inma es, if needed. 

e. Any inmates with SMI who rema· n on 9C (or equivalent housing) for seven 
continuous days or longer will ha e an interdisciplinary plan of care, as per 
the Mental Health Treatment secti n of this Agreement (Section III.C.2.e). 

6. Custodial Segregation 

a. The Jail and CHS shall develop d implement policies and procedures to 
ensure inmates in custodial se egation are housed in an appropriate 
environment that facilitates staff upervision, treatment, and personal safety 
in accordance with the following: 

( 1) All locked housing decisi s for inmates with SMI shall include the 
documented input of a Q$ified Medical and/or Mental Health Staff 
who has conducted a face- o-face evaluation of the inmate, is familiar 
with the details of the i ate's available clinical history, and has 
considered the inmate's ental health needs and history. If at the 
time of custodial segregat on Qualified Medical Staff has concerns 
about mental health need , the inmate will be placed with visual 
checks every 15 minutes until the inmate can be evaluated by 
Qualified Mental Health St ff. 
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(2) Prior to placement in cust dial segregation for a period greater than 
eight hours, all inmates hall be screened by a Qualified Mental 
Health Staff to determine (1) whether the inmate has SMI, and (2) 
whether there are an acute medical or mental health 
contraindications to custod al segregation. 

(3) If a Qualified Mental He lth Professional finds that an inmate has 
SMI, that inmate shall o be placed in custodial segregation with 
visual checks every 15 or 0 minutes as determined by the Qualified 
Medical Health Profession 

(4) Inmates with SMI who ar not diverted or removed from custodial 
segregation shall be offere a heightened level of care that includes: 

1. Qualified Mental ealth Professionals conducting rounds at 
least three times a eek to assess the mental health status of 
all inmates in custo ial segregation and the effect of custodial 
segregation on ea h inmate's mental health to determine 
whether continued placement in custodial segregation is 
appropriate. Thes rounds shall be documented and not 
function as a substi te for treatment. 

n. Documentation of out-of-cell time, indicating the type and 
duration of activity. 

( 5) Inmates with SMI shall n t be placed in custodial segregation for 
more than 24 hours with ut the written approval of the Facility 
Supervisor and Director of ental Health Services or designee. 

( 6) Inmates with serious ment 1 illness shall not be placed into long-term 
custodial segregation, an inmates with serious mental illness 
currently subject to long-te custodial segregation shall immediately 
be removed from such c nfinement and referred for appropriate 
assessment and treatment. 

(7) If an inmate on custodial segregation develops symptoms of SMI 
where such symptoms h d not previously been identified or the 
inmate decompensates, he r she shall immediately be removed from 
custodial segregation and referred for appropriate assessment and 
treatment. 

(8) If an inmate with SMI in c stodial segregation suffers deterioration in 
his or her mental health, decompensates, engages in self-harm, or 
develops a heightened ris of suicide, that inmate shall immediately 
be referred for appropriate assessment and treatment and removed if 
the custodial segregation is causing the deterioration. 
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(9) 

(10) 

(11) 

The MDCR Jail facilities' taff will conduct documented rounds of all 
inmates in custodial segrefation at staggered intervals at least once 
every half hour, to assess.l and document the inmate's status, using 
descriptive terms such a "reading," "responded appropriately to 
questions" or "sleeping but easily aroused." 

Inmates in custodial segr gation shall have daily opportunities to 
contact and receive treatm nt for medical and mental health concerns 
with Qualified Medical d Mental Health Staff in a setting that 
affords as much privacy as easonable security precautions will allow. 

Mental health referrals of inmates in custodial segregation will be 
classified, at minimum, as gent referrals. 

7. Staffing and Training 

a. CHS revised its staffing pl in March 2012 to incorporate a 
multidisciplinary approach to c re continuity and collaborative service 
operations. The effective approac allows for integrated services and staff to 
be outcomes-focused to enhance o erations. 

b. Within 180 days of the Effective Date, and annually thereafter, CHS shall 
submit to the Monitor and DOJ :6 r review and comment its detailed mental 
health staffing analysis and plan fo all its facilities. 

c. CHS shall staff the facility based n the staffing plan and analysis, together 
with any recommended revisions y the Monitor. If the staffing study and/or 
monitor comments indicate a need for hiring additional staff, the parties shall 
agree upon the timetable for the hi · g of any additional staff. 

d. Every 180 days after completion of the first staffing analysis, CHS shall 
conduct and provide to DOJ and the Monitor staffing analyses examining 
whether the level of staffing reco ended by the initial staffing analysis and 
plan continues to be adequate to implement the requirements of this 
Agreement. If they do not, the p ies shall re-evaluate and agree upon the 
timetable for the hiring of any add" ional staff. 

e. The mental health staffmg shall 
licensed chief psychiatrist, whose 
psychiatrists at the Jail. In additio 
a psychologist, shall supervise 
mental health services. 
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f. The County shall develop and mplement written training protocols for 
mental health staff, including a pre service and biennial in-service training on 
all relevant policies and procedure and the requirements of this Agreement. 

g. The Jail and CHS shall develop d implement written training protocols in 
the area of mental health for corre tional officers. A Qualified Mental Health 
Professional shall conduct the trai · ng for corrections officers. This training 
should include pre-service trainin , annual training for officers who work in 
forensic (Levels 1-3) or intake un ts, and biennial in-service training for all 
other officers on relevant topics, i eluding: 

(1) training on basic mental h alth information (e.g., recognizing mental 
illness, specific problemati behaviors, additional areas of concern); 

(2) identification, timely referr 1, and proper supervision of inmates with 
serious mental health need ; and 

(3) appropriate responses to b havior symptomatic of mental illness; and 
suicide prevention. 

h. The County and CHS shall dev lop and implement written policies and 
procedures to ensure appropriate d regular communication between mental 
health staff and correctional office s regarding inmates with mental illness. 

8. Suicide Prevention Training 

a. The County shall ensure that all s ff have the adequate knowledge, skill, and 
ability to address the needs of i ates at risk for suicide. The County and 
CHS shall continue its Corre tional Crisis Intervention Training a 
competency-based interdisciplin suicide prevention training program for 
all medical, mental health, and co ections staff. The County and CHS shall 
review and revise its current s · cide prevention training curriculum to 
include the following topics, t ught by medical, mental health, and 
corrections custodial staff: 

(1) suicide prevention policies d procedures; 

(2) the suicide screening inst ent and the medical intake tool; 

(3) analysis of facility enviro ents and why they may contribute to 
suicidal behavior; 

( 4) potential predisposing fact rs to suicide; 

(5) high-risk suicide periods; 

( 6) warning signs and sympto s of suicidal behavior; 

(7) case studies of recent suici es and serious suicide attempts; 

(8) mock demonstrations reg ding the proper response to a suicide 
attempt; and 
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(9) the proper use of emergenc equipment. 

b. All correctional custodial, medic 1, and mental health staff shall complete 
training on all of the suicide p vention training curriculum topics at a 
minimum of eight hours for the i itial training and two hours of in-service 
training annually for officers who work in intake, forensic (Levels 1-3), and 
custodial segregation units and hie ially for all other officers. 

c. CHS and the County shall train correctional custodial staff in observing 
inmates on suicide watch and ste -down unit status, one hour initially and 
one hour in-service annually for o 1cers who work in intake, forensic (Levels 
1-3), and custodial segregation uni s and biennially for all other officers. 

d. CHS and the County shall ensure 1 correctional custodial staff are certified 
in cardiopulmonary resuscitation (' CPR"). 

9. Risk Management 

a. The County will develop, imple ent, and maintain a system to ensure that 
trends and incidents involving avo· dable suicides and self-injurious behavior 
are identified and corrected in a timely manner. Within 90 days of the 
Effective Date, the County and HS shall develop and implement a risk 
management system that identifies levels of risk for suicide and self-injurious 
behavior and results in interventi n at the individual and system levels to 
prevent or minimize harm to · ates, as set forth by the triggers and 
thresholds in Appendix A. 

b. The risk management system s all include the following processes to 
supplement the mental health sere ning and assessment processes: 

(1) incident reporting, data c llection, and data aggregation to capture 
sufficient information to :6 rmulate a reliable risk assessment at the 
individual and system level ; 

(2) identification of at-risk i ates in need of clinical or interdisciplinary 
assessment or treatment; 

(3) identification of situation involving at-risk inmates that require 
review by an interdiscip inary team and/or systemic review by 
administrative and professi nal committees; and 

(4) implementation of interve tions that minimize and prevent harm in 
response to identified patte sand trends. 

c. The County shall develop an implement a Mental Health Review 
Committee that will review, on a least a monthly basis, data on triggering 
events at the individual and syste levels, as set forth in Appendix A. The 
Mental Health Review Committee shall: 
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(1) require, at the individual evel, that mental health assessments are 
performed and mental ealth interventions are developed and 
implemented; 

(2) provide oversight of the i plementation of mental health guidelines 
and support plans; 

(3) analyze individual and a gregate mental health data and identify 
trends that present risk of h 

(4) refer individuals to the Q lity Improvement Committee for review; 
and 

( 5) prepare written annual p rformance assessments and present its 
findings to the Interdiscipli ary Team regarding the following: 

1. quality of nursing s rvices regarding inmate assessments and 
dispositions, and 

n. access to mental he lth care by inmates, by assessing the 
process for screeni g and assessing inmates for mental health 
needs. 

d. The County shall develop and im lement a Quality Improvement Committee 
that shall: 

(1) revtew and determine hether the screening and suicide risk 
assessment tool is utilized ppropriately and that documented follow­
up training is provided to y staff who are not performing screening 
and assessment in acco dance with the requirements of this 
Agreement; 

(2) monitor all risk manageme t activities of the facilities; 

(3) review and analyze aggreg te risk management data; 

( 4) identify individual and syst mic risk management trends; 

(5) make recommendations fo further investigation of identified trends 
and for corrective action, i eluding system changes; and 

(6) monitor implementation of recommendations and corrective actions. 
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D. AUDITS AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEME T 

1. Self Audits 

a. The County shall ·undertake me ures on its own initiative to address the 
protection of inmates' constituti nal rights and the risk of constitutional 
violations. The Agreement is d signed to encourage the County to self 
monitor and to take correcti e action to ensure compliance with 
constitutional mandates in additio to the review and assessment of technical 
provisions of the Agreement. 

b. Qualified Medical and Mental ealth Staff shall review data concerning 
inmate medical and mental health are to identify potential patterns or trends 
resulting in harm to inmates in the areas of intake, medication administration, 
medical record keeping, medical · evances, assessments and treatment. 

c. The County and CHS shall devel p and implement corrective action plans 
within 30 days of each quarterly review, including changes to policy and 
changes to and additional training. 

2. Bi-annual Reports 

a. Starting within six months of the Effective Date, the County and CHS will 
provide to the United States and t e Monitor bi-annual reports regarding the 
following: 

(1) All psychotropic medicatio s administered by the Jail to inmates. 
(2) All health care delivered b the Jail to inmates to address serious 

medical concerns. The rep rt will include: 

1. number of inmates ansferred to the emergency room for 
medical treatment d why; 

11. number of inmates dmitted to the hospital with the clinical 
outcome; 

iii. number of inmates aken to the infirmary for non-emergency 
treatment; and why; and 

iv. number of inmates "th chronic conditions provided 
consultation, referr Is and treatment, including types of 
chronic conditions. 

(3) All suicide-related incident . The report will include: 

1. all suicides; 
11. all serious suicide a 
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111. list of inmates plac d on suicide monitoring at all levels, 
including the durati n of monitoring and property allowed 
(mattress, clothes, otwear); 

1v. all restraint use rela ed to a suicide attempt or precautionary 
measure; and 

v. information on whe her inmates were seen within four days 
after discharge fro suicide monitoring. 

(4) Inmate counseling services. he report and review shall include: 

1. inmates who are on the mental health caseload, classified by 
levels of care; 

11. inmates who report aving participated in general mental 
health/therapy coun eling and group schedules, as well as any 
waitlists for groups· 

111. inmates receiving o e-to-one counseling with a psychologist, 
as well as any waitl sts for such counseling; and 

1v. inmates receiving o e-to-one counseling with a psychiatrist, 
as well as any waitl sts for such counseling. 

(5) Total number of inmate dis iplinary reports, the number of reports 
that involved inmates with ental illness, and whether Qualified 
Mental Health Professional participated in the disciplinary action. 

(6) Reportable incidents. The eport will include: 

1. a brief summary of ll reportable incidents, by type and date; 
11. a description of all uicides and in-custody deaths, including 

the date, name of i ate, and housing unit; and 
111. number of grievanc s referred to IA for investigation. 

b. The County and CHS shall develo and implement corrective action plans 
within 60 days of each quarterly re iew, including changes to policy and 
changes to and additional training. 

IV. COMPLIANCE AND UAL TY IMPROVEMENT 

A. Within 180 days of the Effective Date, the Count and CHS shall revise and develop 
policies, procedures, protocols, training curricula, and practices to ensure that they are 
consistent with, incorporate, address, and implem nt all provisions of this Agreement. The 
County and CHS shall revise and develop, as nee ssary, other written documents such as 
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screening tools, logs, handbooks, manuals, and fo s, to effectuate the provisions of this 
Agreement. The County and CHS shall send any newly-adopted and revised policies and 
procedures to the Monitor and the United States£ r review and approval as they are 
promulgated. The County and CHS shall provide initial and in-service training to all Jail 
staff in direct contact with inmates, with respect t newly implemented or revised policies 
and procedures. The County and CHS shall docu ent employee review and training in 
policies and procedures. 

B. The County and CHS shall develop and impleme t written Quality Improvement policies 
and procedures adequate to identify and address s rious deficiencies in medical care, mental 
health care, and suicide prevention to assess and nsure compliance with the terms of this 
Agreement on an ongoing basis. 

C. On an annual basis, the County and CHS shall re iew all policies and procedures for any 
changes needed to fully implement the terms oft ·s Agreement and submit to the Monitor 
and the United States for review any changed pol" cies and procedures. 

D. The Monitor may review and suggest revisions o the County and CHS policies and 
procedures on medical care, mental health care, d suicide prevention, including currently 
implemented policies and procedures, to ensure s ch documents are in compliance with this 
Agreement. 

V. REPORTING RE UIREMENTS AND RIGHT OF ACCESS 

A. Defendants shall submit bi-annual compliance re orts to the United States and the Monitor, 
the first of which shall be submitted within six m nths of the Effective Date. Thereafter, the 
bi-annual compliance reports shall be submitted 15 days after the termination of each six­
month period thereafter until the Agreement is te · nated. The report shall summarize 
audits and continuous improvement and quality surance activities and contain findings 
and recommendations that would be used to track and trend data compiled at the Jail. The 
report shall also capture data that is tracked and onitored outlined in "Substantive 
Provisions" (Section III) of this Agreement. 

B. Defendants shall promptly notify the Monitor and the United States upon the death or 
serious suicide attempt of any inmate. Defendant shall forward to the Monitor and the 
United States incident reports and medical and/or mental health reports related to deaths, 
autopsies, and/or death summaries of inmates as ell as all final Internal Affairs Division 
investigations reports that involve inmates. 

C. Each compliance report shall describe the actions Defendants have taken during the 
reporting period to implement this Agreement an shall make specific reference to the 
Agreement provisions being implemented. 

D. Defendants shall maintain sufficient records to do ument that the requirements of this 
Agreement are being properly implemented and s all make such records available to the 
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United States for inspection and copying. In addi ion, Defendants shall maintain, and 
provide upon request, all records or other docum nts to verify that they have taken such 
actions as described in their compliance reports ( .g., census summaries, policies, 
procedures, protocols, training materials, investig tions, and incident reports). 

E. The United States and its attorneys, consultants, d agents shall have unrestricted access to 
the Jail, inmates, staff and documents as reasonab y necessary to address issues affected by 
this Agreement. 

F. Within 30 days of receipt of written questions fro the United States concerning 
Defendants' compliance with the requirements of this Agreement, Defendants shall provide 
the United States with written answers and any re uested documents. 

G. MDCR and CHS shall each designate compliance coordinators to oversee compliance with 
this Agreement and to serve as the points of cont ct. 

VI. G 

A. Monitor Selection: The Parties will jointly select a Monitor to oversee implementation of 
the Agreement. Should the Parties be unable to a ee on the Monitor, each shall 
recommend no more than two candidates to the C urt and the Court will appoint the 
Monitor from the names submitted by the Parties. Neither Party, nor any employee or agent 
of either Party, shall have any supervisory authori over the Monitor's activities, reports, 
findings, or recommendations. The cost for the onitor' s fees and expenses shall be borne 
by Defendants. The selection of the Monitor shal be conducted solely pursuant to the 
procedures set forth in this Agreement, and will n t be governed by any formal or legal 
procurement requirements. The Monitor may be erminated only for good cause, unrelated 
to the Monitor's findings or recommendations, an only with approval of the Court. Should 
the Parties agree that the Monitor is not fulfilling · s or her duties in accordance with this 
Agreement, the Parties may move the Court for e Monitor's immediate removal and 
replacement. One Party may unilaterally move th Court for the Monitor's removal for 
good cause, and the other Parties will have the op ortunity to respond to the petition. 

B. Monitor Qualifications: The Monitor and his or er staff shall have experience and 
education or training related to the subject areas c vered in this Agreement. 

C. Monitoring Team: The Monitor may hire or cons lt with such additional qualified staff as 
necessary to fulfill the duties required by the Agr ement ("Monitoring Teams"). The 
Monitor is ultimately responsible for the fmdings egarding compliance. The Monitoring 
Teams will be subject to all the same access right and confidentiality limitations as the 
Monitor. The Parties reserve the right to object :tl r good cause to members of the 
Monitoring Teams. The Court will decide any esolved objections to members. 

D. Monitor Access: The Monitor shall have full and complete access to the Jail, staff, inmates, 
all Jail records, and inmate medical and mental h alth records. Defendants shall direct all 
employees to cooperate fully with the Monitor. ll non-public information obtained by the 
Monitor shall be maintained in a confidential m 
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E. Monitor Ex Parte Communications: The Monito11 shall be permitted to initiate and receive 
ex parte communications with all Parties. 

F. Limitations on Public Disclosures by the Monitor Except as required or authorized by the 
terms of this Agreement or the Parties acting toge her, the Monitor shall not make any 
public statements (at a conference or otherwise) o issue findings, except as required under 
paragraph G, infra, with regard to any act or omission of Defendants or their agents, 
representatives or employees. Any press stateme t made by the Monitor regarding the 
monitoring of this Agreement or his or her emplo ment as Monitor must first be approved 
in writing by all Parties. The Monitor shall not te tify in any other litigation or proceeding 
with regard to any act or omission of Defendants r any of their agents, representatives, or 
employees related to this Agreement, nor testify r garding any matter or subject that he or 
she may have learned as a result of his or her pe rmance under this Agreement. Reports 
issued by the Monitor shall not be admissible aga nst Defendants in any proceeding other 
than a proceeding related to the enforcement of · s Agreement by Defendants or the United 
States. Unless such conflict is waived by the Part es, the Monitor shall not accept 
employment or provide consulting services that ould present a conflict of interest with the 
Monitor's responsibilities under this Agreement. either the Monitor nor any person or 
entity hired or otherwise retained by the Monitor o assist in furthering any provision of this 
Agreement shall be liable for any claim, lawsuit o demand arising out ofthe Monitor's 
performance pursuant to this Agreement. This pr vision does not apply to any proceeding 
before a court related to performance of contracts or subcontracts for monitoring this 
Agreement. 

G. Monitor's Reports: The Monitor shall file with t e Court, and provide the Parties, reports 
describing the steps taken by Defendants to imple ent this Agreement and evaluate the 
extent to which Defendants have complied withe ch substantive provision of the 
Agreement. The Monitor's Reports shall indicate a compliance rating for each provision 
and provide recommendations for achieving com liance with any provisions not in 
compliance at the time of the Report. The Monit r shall issue an initial report four months 
after the Effective Date, and then every six mont thereafter. The reports shall be provided 
to the Parties in draft form for comment at least t o weeks prior to their issuance. These 
reports shall be written with due regard for the pri acy interests of individual inmates and 
staff. 

H. Compliance Assessments: In the Monitor's repo , the Monitor shall evaluate the status of 
compliance for each relevant provision ofthe A ement using the following standards: (1) 
Substantial Compliance; (2) Partial Compliance, d (3) Non-compliance. To assess 
compliance, the Monitor shall review a sufficient umber of pertinent documents to 
accurately assess current conditions; interview all necessary staff; and interview a sufficient 
number of inmates to accurately assess current co ditions. The Monitor shall be responsible 
for independently verifying representations from efendants regarding progress toward 
compliance, examining supporting documentatio , where applicable. Each Monitor's report 
shall describe the steps taken by each member of he monitoring team to analyze conditions 
and assess compliance, including documents revi wed and individuals interviewed, and the 
factual basis for each ofthe Monitor's findings. 
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I. Monitor's Budget: Defendants shall provide the onitor with a budget sufficient to allow 
the Monitor to carry out the responsibilities desc bed in this Agreement. The Monitor shall 
pay the members of the Monitoring Teams out of this budget. 

J. Technical Assistance by the Monitor: The Monit r shall provide Defendants with technical 
assistance as requested by Defendants. Technical assistance should be reasonable and 
should not interfere with the Monitor's ability to ssess compliance. 

A. Defendants shall implement all reforms within th ir areas of responsibility, as designated 
within the provisions of this Agreement that are n cessary to effectuate this Agreement. 
The implementation of this Agreement will begin immediately upon the Effective Date. 

B. Except where otherwise agreed to under a specifi provision of this Agreement, Defendants 
shall implement all provisions of this Agreement "thin 180 days of the Effective Date. 

C. An individual substantive provision in this Agree ent shall terminate after the United States 
finds that Defendants maintained sustained subs tial compliance of that provision for a 
period of 18 months. Non-compliance with mere technicalities, or temporary failure to 
comply during a period of otherwise sustained co pliance, will not constitute failure to 
maintain substantial compliance. Temporary com liance during a period of otherwise 
sustained non-compliance will not constitute subs tial compliance. 

D. Failure by any Party to enforce this entire Agree ent or any provision thereof with respect 
to any deadline or any other provision herein shal not be construed as a waiver of its right 
to enforce other deadlines or provisions of this A reement. 

E. If any unforeseen circumstance occurs that cause a failure to timely carry out any 
requirements of this Agreement, Defendants shall notify the United States in writing within 
20 calendar days after Defendants become aware f the unforeseen circumstance and its 
impact on the Defendants' ability to perform und r the Agreement. The notice shall 
describe the cause of the failure to perform and th measures taken to prevent or minimize 
the failure. Defendants shall implement all reaso able measures to avoid or minimize any 
such failure. Notice shall not prevent the United tates from seeking court intervention. 

F. This Agreement constitutes the entire integrated greement of the Parties, as it relates to 
medical care, mental health care, and suicide pre ention (See Section I.5.). With the 
exception of the United States' Findings Letter, n prior or contemporaneous 
communications, oral or written, will be relevant r admissible for purposes of determining 
the meaning of any provisions herein in this litiga ion or in any other proceeding. 

G. The Agreement shall be applicable to, and bindin upon, all Parties, their officers, agents, 
employees, assigns, and their successors in office 

H. Each Party shall bear the cost of its fees and expe ses incurred in connection with this 
cause. 
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I. If any provision of this Agreement is declared 
competent jurisdiction, said finding shall not 
Agreement. 

34 

for any reason by a court of 
the remaining provisions of this 
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FOR THE UNITED STATES: 

A .JAN 
Trial Attorn y 
United Stat s Department of Justice 
Civil Right Division 
Special Liti ation Section 
950 Pennsy vania A venue, NW 
Washington D.C. 20530 
202~514~62 5 
regina.janse @usdoj.gov 
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I 

MI-DADE COUNTY: 

CARLOS MIGOYA 
President & Chief Executive Officer 
Public Health Trust 

n-:;+: 
By: t>·VOV\T\ 
--~--~~~~------
BERNARDO PASTOR 
Assistant County Attorney 
Stephen P. Clark Center, Suite 2810 
111 N.W. 1st Street 
Miami, Florida 33128-1993 
Tel: (305) 375-1506 
Fax: (305) 375-5611 

IL 

'.'·.\ ·. 
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So ORDERED this ____ day of ____ -+---' 2013 

WI LIAM J. ZLOCH 
UN TED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE 
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